# Minutes of the Meeting of the COMMUNITY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE held at the Council Chamber, Epsom Town Hall on 18 January 2022

#### PRESENT -

Councillor Alex Coley (Chairman); Councillor Bernice Froud (Vice-Chair); Councillors Christine Cleveland, Previn Jagutpal, Debbie Monksfield, Julie Morris, Phil Neale, Guy Robbins, Clive Smitheram and Peter Webb

#### In Attendance:

Absent: Councillor Luke Giles

Officers present: Clare Lawrence (Director of Environment, Housing & Regeneration), Rod Brown (Head of Housing and Community), Ian Dyer (Head of Operational Services), Teresa Wingfield (Senior Accountant), Serena Powis (Community and Voluntary Sector Liaison Officer) and Stephanie Gray (Democratic Services Officer)

## 9 QUESTION TIME

No questions were received from members of the public.

## 10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following declarations were made in respect of items on the agenda.

#### **Declarations of Interest**

Councillor Christine Cleveland, Other Interest: In the interests of openness and transparency, Councillor Christine Cleveland declared that she is an allotment holder.

#### **Declarations of Interest**

Councillor Christine Cleveland, Other Interest: In the interests of openness and transparency, Councillor Christine Cleveland declared that she is one of the allocated Councillors for Age Concern, Epsom & Ewell.

#### **Declarations of Interest**

Councillor Guy Robbins, Other Interest: In the interests of openness and transparency, Councillor Guy Robbins declared that he is one of the allocated Councillors for Age Concern Epsom and Ewell.

## **Declarations of Interest**

Councillor Julie Morris, Other Interest: In the interests of openness and transparency, Councillor Julie Morris declared that she is an allotment holder.

#### 11 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Minutes of the previous meeting of the Community and Wellbeing Committee held on 5 October 2021 were agreed as a true record and signed by the Chair.

## 12 VOLUNTARY SECTOR FUNDING 2022-2023

The Committee received a report on the continued future support of voluntary organisations and setting out the proposed funding arrangements for 2022-2023.

The Head of Housing and Regeneration introduced the report.

The following matters were considered by the Committee:

- a) Increase in parking fees: two separate line items (Volunteer Parking Subsidy and Staff Parking Subsidy) have now been consolidated under a single item, which appears to reflect a large increase (30%), which is not in fact the case.
- b) Limited Increase in Financial Support: the Council is conscious of its own financial pressures and needs to have a balanced budget. Regarding the sustainability of the voluntary sector organisations, the Council is assisting these organisations to access other areas of funding such as the National Lottery, in order to maximise the funding opportunities available.

Following consideration, the Committee resolved unanimously to:

(1) Approve the proposed support for voluntary organisations in 2022-2023 as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report.

## 13 FEES AND CHARGES REPORT 2022-23

The Committee received a report recommending fees and charges for which this Committee is responsible, with the new charges being effective from 1 April 2022.

The following matters were considered by the Committee:

a) **Allotment Forum**: the Forum will be reintroduced and a report in this regard will be brought to the next meeting.

- b) Increase in discretionary fees and charges of 3%: this figure was set by the Strategy & Resource Committee as a guideline; however it is up to Officers to assess current market conditions.
- c) **Private Sector Housing Charge**: in respect of multiple houses with multiple occupants it was clarified that the Council is not permitted to make a profit on this item, but may merely cover its costs.

Following consideration, the Committee resolved to:

(1) Authorise the Chief Finance Officer to vary fees and charges for items generating income under £1,000 per annum and/or for one-off services or items;

And, subject to the approval of Council:

(2) Agree the fees and charges for 2022/23 as set out at Appendix 1 to the report.

#### 14 REVENUE BUDGET REPORT

The Committee received a report setting out budget estimates for income and expenditure for Community & Wellbeing services in 2022/23.

The following items were considered by the Committee:

a) **New Initiatives**: it was confirmed that the funding of the new initiatives set out in paragraph 6.1 of the report, was indicated for one year only. These initiatives had been requested by Members. If these initiatives are agreed, funding will be sought.

Following consideration, the Committee resolved to:

- (1) Recommend the 2022/23 service estimates for approval at the budget meeting of Full Council in February 2022.
- (2) Support the three new initiatives in section 6 of the report;
- (3) Note that the supported initiatives from section 6 will only be progressed if a funding option can be identified during the year, in accordance with the Council's Financial Regulations and budget virement policy.

### 15 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23

The Committee received a report summarising the proposed 2022/23 capital programme and a provisional programme for 2023/24 to 2026/27. The

Committee's approval is sought for the programme to be submitted to Council in February 2022.

The following matters were considered by the Committee:

- a) Availability of resources internally to deliver project: should staffing levels not remain constant, taken with a high level of underspend, additional resources would have to be considered to extend service delivery of the scheme.
- b) Maintenance of Bourne Hall: a significant backlog in terms of this item has built up over several years, to the extent that a large amount of money is required to bring Bourne Hall up to standard.

Following consideration, the Committee resolved to:

- (1) submit the capital programme for 2022/23 as identified in section 3 of this report to the Council for approval on 15 February 2022;
- (2) note the provisional list of schemes for the capital programme for 2023/24 to 2026/27;
- (3) note that schemes subject to external funding from Disabled Facilities Grants only proceed once funding has been received.

The meeting began at 7.30 pm and ended at 8.15 pm

COUNCILLOR ALEX COLEY (CHAIRMAN)